
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
April 3, 2014, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 6, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2013-2014 Operating and Capital Improvement 


Budget (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re District Electrical Power Options (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-06, Approving the Second Amendment to the 


CIP 2014 Contract with Coastland Engineering (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D.   Discussion/Action re Waiving the Capacity Charge and Connection Fees for the 


Parcel at 18072 Hwy 116, APN 072-220-027 (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
March 6, 2014 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Rich Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


The GM announced that Item G (Res. 14-04, Approval of Amendment to Contract of Julie Kenny, 
Administrative Manager) would be moved to after Closed Session.  
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Wikle moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except 
that Director Holmer abstained as to Item III-A (approval of the Minutes) because he was absent at 
that meeting  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 6, 2014 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any.  (There was none.) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-03, Accepting the Final Audit for the 


Fiscal Year Ending June 03, 2013.    The GM introduced this item.  Auditor Derek 
Rampone of Moss, Levy et al. provided an overview of the Audit and answered questions 
via telephone.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 14-
03, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
B. (7:28 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2013-14 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and 
discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to go forward with a 3% rate increase 
and send out a Proposition 218 rate increase letter.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion 
carried 5-0.   


 
C. (8:10 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District Electrical Power Option.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken, but this item 
was placed on the April Agenda for further discussion. 


 
D. (8:20 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Sewer Main Break on February 13.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 


** At 8:50 p.m. a brief recess was taken.  The meeting reconvened at 8:33 p.m. 
 


E. (8:53 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rejection of Claim 2014-01.  Claimant: Deborah 
Waller, 17410 Guernewood Lane.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to reject Claim 2014-01.  Director 
Schaap seconded.  Further discussion ensued.  Motion carried 4-0, with Director Lipinski 
abstaining from the vote due to a conflict of interest. 


 
F. (9:03 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-01, Agreement and Election of 


Sweetwater Springs Water District to Prefund Other Post Employment Benefits 
Through CalPERS (via California Employers Retiree Benefit Trust Program 
(CERBT); and Resolution 14-02, Delegation of Authority to Request Disbursements 
(from CERBT).  The GM provided and overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  
Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 14-01, Electing to Join the California 
Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust Program (CERBT) and Resolution 14-02, Delegation of 
Authority to Request Disbursements.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Further 
discussion ensued.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:17 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall (Drought) 
5. 2014 CIP / 2015 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Monte Rio Triangle 
9. Gantt Chart 


 2







 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(9:20 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder announced that she did not get her packet in Saturday's mail. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:21 p.m.) 
 
At 9:21 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 9:22 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 10 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957 
  Title: District Counsel 
  No action was taken.  
 
 C. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957 
  Title: Administrative Manager 
  Action was taken in Open session (Item V-G). 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS (con't.) (10:01 p.m.) 
 
 G. Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-04, Approval of Amendment to 


Contract of Julie Kenny, Administrative Manager.  The GM introduced this 
item.  Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 14-04, Amendment to 
Contract of Julie Kenny, Administrative Manager.  Director Lipinski seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0.  


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:13 p.m.) 
 
1. Budget 
2. District Electrical Power Option 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 


 3







 4


APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:17 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(9:20 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:21 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7

		Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS (con't.) (10:01 p.m.)







		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:13 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 3, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2014-2015 DRAFT BUDGET 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2014-2015 
Budget, including the draft Budget Report, and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2014-2015 (FY15) Budget was presented at the March meeting.  At the 
meeting we discussed budget issues, the proposed water rate increases, and the line 
item details of the proposed FY15 Budget.  During the discussion several items were 
highlighted, among them was the projection of water sales revenues.  Highlights of 
the FY15 Budget include: 
 


 A 3% increase in the Water Usage, Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges.    This is the fourth year of the nine year plan to increase capital 
funding to a sustainable level.  
 


 Water sales are projected to be flat.   
 


 This is the second year since FY08 that Redevelopment funding assistance is 
not included.   


 
 The capital project to be constructed in FY15 iis the Old Monte Rio Road 


project.  The FY16 capital project, Canyon One Road in Rio Nido, will be 
designed and construction contract award expected in FY 15.     


 
 The savings from the USDA Bonds refinancing is approximately $45,000 in 


FY15.  At the March meeting we discussed a recent questioning of the 
refinancing process and results by US Department of Agriculture staff.  We are 
still in the process of resolving their questions.   


 
 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund is $500,000 which puts 


the District close to the sustainable capital funding target. 
 


The Proposition 218 notice was mailed by March 17.  As of the date the writing of 
this report (March 27), 87 protests have been received.   
 







FY 2014-2015 DRAFT BUDGET   2 
April 3, 2014 
 


 


Exhibit A is the draft FY15 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget 
detail, the revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    
This document plus information on the proposed 3% water rates increase will be on 
the District website.   


 
  


  
Table 1.  FY 2014-2015 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 5, 2013 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2014 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 6, 2014 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 17, 2014 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 3, 2014 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates


May 1, 2014 


 
 
 
 


 







Exhibit A 


  
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2014-15 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Richard Holmer, President 
Tim Lipinski, Vice President 


Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator 
Victoria Wikle  


Gaylord Schaap 
 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 


 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2014-15 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2014-2014 (FY15) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.6 million and capital improvement expenses of $3.2 million. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.  Note that sources of funds are enhanced by 
approximately $600,000 from District Reserves for capital improvements.   These figures 
do not include expenses or sources of funds for construction of the 2016 CIP for which 
the construction contract will be awarded in FY15 but the funds not expended until FY16 
(approximately $800,000). 
 


Figure 1. FY 2015 Expenses
Total = $3.6 Million


(does not include FY16 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
30%


Salary and Benefits
28%


Debt Repayment
27%


Services and Supplies
15%


Figure 2.  FY15 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $3.6 Million


$3.0 Million Revenues + $600,000 Reserves


Base Rate Charge
36%


Water Usage Charge
18%


CDRC
6%


Assessments
20%


Interest
1%


Rent, Other
2%


Reserves
17%


 2 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 3


Table 1 is a summary of the FY15 Budget which is described and shown in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY15 Budget is similar in form and content to prior years’ budgets.  
The FY15 Budget includes the fourth year of 3% increases for the Base Rate and Water 
Usage Charges and the second year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge which are designed to develop sustainable capital project funding.     


TABLE 1.  FY
 


REVENUE


1


 2014-15 OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*


 FY13-14 
BUDGET  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets 


OPERATING REVENUE


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 238,368 245,800         253,947         8,147           


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,332,100       1,393,127       61,027         


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges 1,926,866 675,100         725,894         50,794         


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,007,200       2,119,021       111,821       


otal OPERATING REVENUE 2,165,234 2,253,000 2,372,967 119,967       


otal NON-OPERATING REVENUE 106,274 93,400 106,850 13,450         


e 2,271,508 2,346,400 2,479,817 133,417       


OPERATING EXPENSES


794,841 794,588 794,790 202             


283,897 316,415 303,431 (12,984)        


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,738 1,111,003 1,098,221 (12,782)        


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 476,895 520,930 501,025 (19,905)        


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,555,633 1,631,933 1,599,246 (32,687)        


NG SURPLUS/DEFICIT $715,875 $714,467 $880,571 166,104$     


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,838 22,000 72,000 50,000         


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 260,000 675,800 793,947 118,147       


FICIT 440,037 16,667 14,625 (2,042)          


L BUDGET
SOURCES OF FUNDS
OTAL REVENUE 1,933,387 1,447,000 3,210,947 1,763,947    


OTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,086,633 1,091,314 1,043,317 (47,997)        


Total Capital Expenses 1,651,438            1,877,149       2,163,149       286,000       


OTAL EXPENSES 2,738,071 2,968,463 3,206,466 238,003       


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -804,684 -1,521,463 4,481
1,525,944    


ND FUND BALANCES (EOY)
District Policy 1,175,602            1,175,602       1,150,528       (25,074)        


serves EOY 4,371,989            3,502,993       2,888,057       (614,935)      


Total Benefits


Total Salary


 


2


3


4
5 T


6 T


7 Total Incom


8 EXPENSES
9


10
11
12


13


14


15 OPERATI


16
17


18 SURPLUS/DE


19 CAPITA
20 REVENUE/
21 T


22 EXPENSES
23 T


24
25 T


26
27
28 RESERVES A
29    Total 
30    TOTAL Re







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


2014-15 Fiscal Year (FY15) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site and distributed 
through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 service laterals of varying 
lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is managed and its 
operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  The District has an 
aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and improving the capital 
infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, reduce system water 
losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The annual budget 
identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY15 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
fourth year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges, and the 
second year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   Most of the revenues for the FY15 Budget come from water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 3).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the fourth year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
FY 2015 CIP and FY 2016 CIP (Table 2):  The FY15 Capital Budget includes the 2015 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), which is replacement of 5,800 ft of existing main 
and appurtenances on Old Monte Rio Road commencing at the Handy Andy Booster 
and proceeding westerly to the Highway 116 intersection, estimated to have a total cost 
of approximately $1,215,000 including design, inspection, construction management and 
construction costs.  Approximately $1.1 million of the total costs will occur in FY15.   
 
The FY15 Budget also includes the obligation for funding construction of the FY 2016 
CIP, which is replacement of approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services 
along Canyon 1 Road, Memory Lane, and Memory Park Road in Rio Nido.  This 
expense is included in the FY15 Budget because design costs will start in autumn 2014 
and the construction contract would be obligated in May or June of the fiscal year.  
However, most of the expense will occur in FY16.  These are projects indentified in the 
District’s FY14-19 CIP and are needed improvements to the District’s distribution 
system. 
 


 4 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


District Reserve Policy:   A formal District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  The Draft FY15 Budget projects that the 
District will have approximately $1.7 million in Reserves Above District Policy at the end 
of FY15, including the obligation for the FY16 CIP.  This means cash on hand in the 
Reserves Above District Policy will be approximately $2.5 Million at the end of FY15.   


 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY15 Budget include: 
 


 Water Sales will be flat in FY15 – our assumption is that a 3% rate increase will 
result in a 3% revenue increase in water sales.  


 Salaries are increased to match the approved Memorandum of Understanding 
and contracts for nonrepresented employees and includes the savings of the 
General Manager in partial retirement.  


 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) is budgeted at 
$500,000 in FY15. 


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY15 Budget: 
 
The FY15 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges based on flat water 
sales.  Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 


 5 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to have almost no change which reflects a full 
year of the General Manager’s partial retirement and the District salary savings from 
that.   Benefits are budgeted to decrease approximately $13,000 because of a reduction 
in the amount paid for retiree health and a reduction in workers comp insurance costs.  
Salaries and Benefits are a major District expense – approximately 70% of the FY15 
Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $20,000 lower than the FY14 approved 
budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and has been decreased to reflect the projected costs in FY14 which will likely be similar 
for FY15.   Governmental Fees are budgeted to remain flat in the coming fiscal year.  
Professional Services has decreased based on actual costs for legal services in FY14.  
Electricity is a big expense item and is expected to have an increase in FY15 ($10,000) 
but there is some uncertainty to this number because the District may be moving to a 
new provider (Sonoma Clean Power).   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures has been substantially increased to budget for the purchase 
of a new truck.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to replace 
the chlorination system for the Monte Rio System and a tank liner at the Park Avenue 
Tank. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $794,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($500,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($253,947).   
 
The FY15 Capital Budget major expenses are the FY 2015 CIP (estimated cost 
$1,000,000) and FY 2016 CIP (estimated cost $900,000), described above and in 
Table 2. 
 
Capital Interest revenue is estimated conservatively to reflect expected continuing low 
interest rates this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 27% of total 
District annual expenses.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – $1.6 million in bonds that were approved to 
purchase the District and make needed capital improvements and refinanced last 
year.  Paid off in 2042.  Annual payment - $72,000.   


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY15 payment is $566,508, saving the 
District approximately $45,000 in the FY15 fiscal year.      


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-22.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.   


 
  
 


 6 







FY 2014-15 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 7 


District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY15, District Policy Reserves are at $1,150,528 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the year are $1,737,530.   This includes the obligation for the 
FY 2015 CIP, so actual cash on hand reserves at the end of FY15 will be approximately 
$2.5 million.   
 
The detailed FY15 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2014-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2015    


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly, 50 services. $1,240,000


  


2016  


 
Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $975,000


 2015-2016 Totals 2,215,000
 







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


1


DRAFT FY 2014-15 OPERATING BUDGET
 


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Char 238,368 245,800           246,550  253,947          8,147            3% rate increase on projected


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,332,100       1,352,550 1,393,127       61,027          3% rate increase on projected


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges 1,926,866 675,100          704,752 725,894          50,794          3% rate increase on projected


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,007,200       2,057,302 2,119,021       111,821        


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,165,234 2,253,000 2,303,852 2,372,967 119,967        


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 1,875 0 0 -                      -                   


1700 · Interest 16,882 7,500              7,000 7,500              -                   


1001 · CY Direct Charge Proceeds -1,198 -                      -                   


3600 · Construction New Services 5,859 5,000              5,000 5,000              -                   


3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 5,123 2,000              2,000 2,000              -                   


4032 · Rent
73,558 75,400            97,550  88,350            12,950          


Crystal $1361/mo
AT&T $6000/mo


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 1,742 1,000              2,000  1,500              500               
USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,433 2,500              2,500 2,500              -                   


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 106,274 93,400 125,080 106,850 13,450          


Total Income 2,271,508 2,346,400 2,428,932 2,479,817 133,417        


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS


Salary


5910 · Wages 707,592 693,626 683,761          697,038          3,413            


5912 · Overtime 20,922 30,772 31,832            30,562            (210)             


5916 · On-Call Pay 29,485 33,090 29,178            33,090            -                   


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,842 37,100 36,886 34,100$          (3,000)          


794,841 794,588 781,656 794,790 202               Total Salary


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


2


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending 165 0  -                      -                   


5920 · Retirement 117,363 115,563 126,817 121,115          5,552            


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer P 14,241 14,021 10,546 14,067            46                 


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLA 127,500 143,762 144,106 143,249          (513)             


5931 · Retiree health 2,724 17,324 17,324 7,000              (10,324)         funding CERBT in FY14


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 21,904 25,746 22,000 18,000            (7,746)          
10% increase over 2014 projected rates, 
reduced experience model


283,897 316,415 320,792 303,431 (12,984)         


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,738 1,111,003 1,102,448 1,098,221 (12,782)         


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 1,688 1,800              1,800 1,800              -                   
Comcast -$81/month: 972
GotoMyPC $19.95/mo = $240
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 3,113 2,900              2,200 4,300              1,400            


Verizon $207/mo: $2484
Cell phone texting reimburse: $60X3 (-
$180)
Misc parts/holders: $200, adding $1,800 
for cells for all field staff


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 469 850                 400 560                 (290)             
American Messaging $30/mo: $360
Misc. parts/batteries: $200


6040-T · Telephones 16,691 16,500            18,150 19,950            3,450            


Ans. Service: $100/mo: $1200
Phones: $1380/mo: $16560
Long distance $45/mo: $600
Added PacketFusion maint contract - 
$1450


21,961 22,050 22,550 26,610 4,560            


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 20,711 21,000            25,413 27,000            6,000            


6102 · Auto/Equipment 12,657  14,000            5,170 5,200              (8,800)          
Increased due to anticipated purchase of
a new truck


33,368 35,000 30,583 32,200 (2,800)          


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 18,473 16,000            14,000 14,000            (2,000)          


6151 · Office Maintenance 3,990 4,600              5,200  4,050              (550)             


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
Moved PacketFusion maint. contract 
to Telephones
The Compute Wizard - $175/mo = 
$2100/year 
Copy mach. maint - 800/yr
Call One - $400/yr
Misc / Other - $250


Total Communications


Total Benefits


Total Insurances


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


3


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


22,463 20,600 19,200 18,050 (2,550)          


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                   


6085 · Janitorial Services 6,852 7,850              8,000 8,000              150               


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = 
$2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $235/mo 
= $2880
Sunrise Garbage $1400
Sewer GVTP ($1100)


2,659 5,000              2,500 5,000              -                   
SCADA Airtime $60.45/mo: $725
SCADA Consultant: $4,275


38,632 52,000            40,000 40,000            (12,000)         


41,254 45,000            50,000 42,000            (3,000)          1 well rehab


6143 · Generator Maintenance 3,097 3,200              3,200 3,200              -                   


92,494 113,050 103,700 98,200 (14,850)         


Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 8,180 9,020              9,020 9,700              680               


USA $155
AWWA $420
CSDA $5000
CUWCC $2600 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


6303 · Claims 410 1,500              8,586  1,500              -                   Allowing $1,000 for remainder of FY14


6593 · Governmental Fees 22,874 20,650            23,000 20,500            (150)             Election costs: 1500, DPH: $19,000


31,464 31,170 40,606 31,700 530               


Office Expense -                   


6410 · Postage 13,450  16,000            16,000 16,000            -                   


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.48 X 12 
months) = $11,520
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .48 = $1,920
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .48 = $1,728
Other mail 


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well 
Repairs


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System 
Repairs


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


4


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


6430 · Printing Expense 5,430 8,450              6,500  7,500              (950)             


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks $700


6461 · Office Supplies 4,479 4,000              4,000 4,000              -                   


Supplies $3000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $40
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notice 636 700                 775 800                 100               


Press Democrat $320
Legal Notices $300
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


6890 · Computers/Software 885 2,800              3,600 700                 (2,100)          


Antivirus softsware ($30X6) = $200
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $300


6579 · Furniture 0 500                 250 500                 -                   


24,880 32,450 31,125 29,500            (2,950)          


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 9,346 17,000            17,000 17,000            -                   


6880 · Tools and Equipment 3,439 6,000              6,000 6,500              500               Leak listener: $2500


6881 · Safety Equipment 404 1,500              1,000 1,000              (500)             


13,189 24,500 24,000 24,500 -                   


Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 3,225 3,400              3,400 3,400              -                   Mission $65/week = $3380


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 10,776 13,000            13,000 13,000            -                   


6570 · Consultant Fees 1,953 3,300              3,300 3,300              -                   


IEDA $2000
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance 
work) $800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


6590 · Engineering 0 -                      0 -                   


6610 · Legal 27,640 28,000            18,000 20,000            (8,000)          


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


5


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


6630 · Audit/Accounting 28,000 30,000            28,000  29,600            (400)             


ADP $45.82/2 weeks = $1191.32
Authorize.net $55/mo = $660
Auditor $7,950
Harbortouch $1100/mo = $13,200
E-check fees = $1200
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $2618


71,594 77,700 65,700 69,300 (8,400)          


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 1,345 3,300              2,000 2,000              (1,300)          Action rents: $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000            27,000 27,675            675               2.5% rent increase


28,345 30,300 29,000 29,675 (625)             


Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,347 4,150              1,200  2,650              (1,500)          
JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500, GM - $500


7201 · Vehicle Gas 26,801 26,500            23,000  25,000            (1,500)          


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,846 6,400              6,400 6,400              -                   
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


33,994 37,050 30,600 34,050 (3,000)          


Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 1,185 1,500              1,500 1,500              -                   $205 X 7 = $1450


6021.3 · T-shirts 504 1,200              1,302  1,500              300               


6021.4 · Jackets 385 360                 240 240                 (120)             2 jackets


2,074 3,060 3,042 3,240 180               


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 97,781 90,000            98,500 100,000          10,000          New Provider?


7321 · Propane 3,288 4,000              4,000 4,000              -                   


101,069 94,000 102,500 104,000 10,000          


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 476,895 520,930 502,606 501,025 (19,905)         


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,555,633 1,631,933 1,605,054 1,599,246 (32,687)         


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $715,875 $714,467 $823,878 $880,571 166,104$      


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/Office equipment 4,136 1,000                


8573 · Vehicles 0 -                      0 50,000            50,000          New vehicle


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


6


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 11,702 21,000            21,000 22,000            1,000            


Replace MIOX  chlorine system at 
MRTP -$12,000
Park Ave Tank Liner - $8.000


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 -                      -                   


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,838 22,000 21,000 72,000 50,000          


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 245,800 246,550 253,947 8,147            


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 220,000 390,000          500,000 500,000          110,000        


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000            15,000 15,000            -                   


8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000            25,000 25,000            -                   


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 260,000 675,800 786,550 793,947 118,147        


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 440,037 16,667 16,328 14,625 (2,042)          


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 18,388 27,000            9,952              27,000            -                   


Annual Assessment (County) 709,327 710,000          779,424          710,000          -                   


Prior Year Assessment 23,644 40,000            33,833            40,000            -                   


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 230,000          246,550          253,947          23,947          


Interest 24,165 25,000            19,004            25,000            -                   


CDC Grants, CIP 2013 912,863 -                  -                  -                   


Funds from Reserves  540,000          1,630,000       $975,000 for FY16 CIP


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 220,000 390,000          500,000          500,000          110,000        


Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operations 25,000 25,000            25,000            25,000            -                   


TOTAL REVENUE 1,933,387 1,447,000 2,153,763 3,210,947 1,763,947     


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 682,448 687,000          72,495            72,495            (614,505)       


Cap One Revenue Bond 583,947          566,508          566,508        


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300          170,172 170,300          -                   


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014          234,014          234,014          -                   


TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,086,633 1,091,314 1,060,628 1,043,317 (47,997)         


CIP IV-B, Project 2 -11,060 -                   -                   


2013 CIP  -                  -                  -                   


2013 CIP Carryover 1,451,921  -                  -                   


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


7


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


2014 CIP Design and Construction Mgmgt 126,626 138,036          138,000          (138,036)       


2014 CIP Construction 24,940
835,964          


841,000          -                      


2015 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 31,470 178,149          75,000            103,149          


2015 CIP Construction 700,000          -                  1,060,000       360,000        based on recent cost estimate


2016 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 175,000          
Canyon 1 design expenses in 2015 
($75,000) and CM in 2016


2016 CIP Construction 800,000          Canyon 1


In-House Construction Projects 27,541 25,000            20,000            25,000            -                   


Total Capital Expenses 1,651,438            1,877,149       1,074,000       2,163,149       286,000        


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,738,071 2,968,463 2,134,628 3,206,466 238,003        


End of FY15 Accrual Expenses 2,331,466


Total Expenses minus 2016 CIP 
Construction and 2016 CIP CM


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -804,684 -1,521,463 19,135 4,481 1,525,944     


RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT RESERVES  


244,790               244,790          239,887          239,887          
(4,903)          


Revised Title and calculation 
per Ord 41


407,983               407,984          399,812          399,812          
(8,173)          


Combined per Ord 41


272,829               272,829          260,829          260,829          
(11,999)         


Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000          250,000          250,000          -                   


   Total District Policy 1,175,602            1,175,602       1,150,528       1,150,528       (25,074)         


   TOTAL Reserves EOY 4,371,989            3,502,993       3,745,006       2,888,057       (614,935)       Sum of District Funds below


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 3,196,387            2,327,391       2,594,478       1,737,530       (589,861)       


   ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,763,057       


Total Reserves Plus Expected 
2016 CIP actual 2016 expenses


   Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,612,530       


Reserves Above Policy Plus 
Expected 2016 CIP actual 2016 
expenses


DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF (776401) 2,232,623            1,725,893       1,997,001       1,144,195       (581,698)       


OPERATING RESERVE (776039 396,970               407,984          407,645          405,942          (2,042)          


OPERATIONS (776013) 630,624               244,790          244,790          244,790          -                   


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating 
Expenses)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 
(15% of Operating Expenses


3/27/2014







EXHIBIT B. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2014-2015


8


FY 12-13
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY13-14 
BUDGET


FY 13-14
Projected  


 FY 14-15
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY15-FY14 
Budgets FY 14-15 Original notes


113,106               113,106          118,106          118,106          
5,000            


BUILDING (776021) 135,850               150,850          150,850          165,850          15,000          


LOANS AND BONDS (776203) 689,303               687,000       656,442          639,003          (47,997)         


STATE LOANS (776500&776609) 173,512               173,370       170,172          170,172          (3,198)          


171,370         171,370     171,370     171,370          


-                   


Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(776518&776617)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(776211)


3/27/2014





		Item V-A - FY 2014-2015 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: April 3, 2014 



		Item V-A.1 - ExhA Draft FY 2014-2015 Budget Report

		Board of Directors

		Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2014-15 Fiscal Year (FY15) Budget





		Item V-A.2 - Draft Line Item Budget FY15

		Combined








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 3, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  DISTRICT ELECTRICAL POWER OPTIONS 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on District electrical power options and 
give direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 4, 2014 the District received a letter from Sonoma Clean Power (SCP).  
The letter informs us that as of May 2014 the District will automatically start with the 
SCP CleanStart power option unless we choose otherwise.  According to the letter the 
options appear to be: 
 


 CleanStart which is 33 percent renewable energy and costs 2-3 percent less 
than PG&E 20 percent renewable service. 


 EverGreen which is 100 percent renewable service for a premium of $0.035 
per kilowatt hour or about 20 percent extra. 


 Opt out – stay with PG&E standard service. 
 
This item was discussed at the March Board meeting and the Board asked for 
more information on the costs of these options.  I have called and emailed SCP 
requesting information on their rates and the costs to the District and they have 
been very helpful.  I gave them actual energy usages from our El Bonita well field 
from winter and summer PG&E bills.  Table 1 shows the energy costs differences 
from the three alternatives (CleanStart, EverGreen and PB&E) 
 


Table 1.  Comparison of Energy Costs at the El Bonita Well Field    


  
Energy 


Use (kWh) CleanStart EverGreen PG&E 
%PG&E-


CleanStart 
%EverGreen-


CleanStart 


Winter 23,979.92  $   2,163.50  $ 3,002.69  $ 2,263.50 4.6% 38.8%


Summer 21,734.84  $   2,450.50  $ 3,211.15  $ 2,574.50 5.1% 31.0%
 
The costs in Table 1 are the costs of energy which are typically about 50% of the 
total cost at these sites.  All the other costs will remain the same; thus, the actual 
savings by percent will be about half: based on these examples, CleanStart will 
be about 2.5% less expensive than the current PG&E costs; EverGreen will be 
about 15-20% more than CleanStart.   





		Meeting Date: April 3, 2014 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 14-06 WHICH 
APPROVES THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
COASTLAND ENGINEERING FOR 2014 CIP  


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 14-06 which approves the Second 
Amendment to the contract with Coastland Engineering for design and construction 
management and inspection services for the 2014 CIP Project and  authorize the 
General Manager to execute.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Increases not-to-exceed amount of the contract by $37,401.78.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In November 2012, the District awarded a contract with Coastland Engineering for 
design and construction management and inspection services for the 2014 CIP Project  
(which then included the Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road projects in 
anticipation of possible USDA funding support) for $324,361.  An extra services 
allowance of $20,000 resulted in a not to exceed amount of $344,361.  The USDA 
funding did not materialize and the District decided to do the Old Monte Rio project in 
2015 and added the Guernewood Lane element to the 2014 CIP.   In January 2013 the 
contract with Coastland was amended to include design and construction management 
costs for the Guernewood Lane element and increased to $421,526 with an extra 
services allowance of $20,000, for a total not to exceed amount of $441,526.    
 
Recently Coastland has informed the District that contract amount for inspection and 
construction management for the 2014 CIP needs to be increased (see Exhibit A).    As 
discussed in Exhibit A, the contract amount needs to be increased because the project 
progress moving slower than expected plus there were unanticipated extra costs 
associated with the Mill Street Emergency Project.   One of the reasons for the extra 
time is the slower pace of directional drilling; this method of pipe installation is expected 
to save the District approximately $100,000, more than offsetting the extra costs of 
inspection and construction management.  The estimated cost of these extra services is 
$37,401.78 which is more than the extra services allowance, thus another contract 
amendment is needed.    
 
Resolution 14-06 authorizes the General Manager to execute the Second Amendment to 
the contract with Coastland for design and construction management and inspection 
services for the 2014 and 2015 CIP Project.  The Second Amendment increases the 
contract amount ($441,526, including a $20,000 allowance for extra services) by 
$37,402 to a new Not to Exceed Amount of $478,928.   







Exhibit A











RESOLUTION 14-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 


ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR FY 2014 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 
WITH COASTLAND ENGINEERING INC. (COASTLAND) AND AUTHORIZING THE 


GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


 
 WHEREAS, the District executed an agreement for engineering services with 
Coastland for the FY 2014 CIP which, at the time of agreement, consisted of the 
following elements: 
 


 Replacement of approximately 5800 ft of main line on Old Monte Rio Road 
in Guerneville with 50 services.  


 Replacement of approximately 3900 ft of main line on Hidden Valley Road 
in Guernewood Park with 67 services; and  


 
 WHEREAS, the District amended that contract in January 2013 to include the 
Guernewood Lane element which will replace 1,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of redundant 4–inch main along Hwy 116 with 20 
services to the work for the 2014 CIP, and move remaining design of the Old Monte Rio 
Road element to the fall and winter of 2013-14 and the construction of this element to 
the summer of 2014; and 
 


WHEREAS, this First Amendment resulted in an approved cost of $421,526 with 
an extra services allowance of $20,000, for a total Not to Exceed Amount of $441,526; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has been informed by Coastland Engineering that the 
slower than expected pace of the work on the 2014 CIP plus extra services caused by 
the Mill Street Emergency Project has caused extra costs for Coastland which are 
estimated to be $37,402 by the completion of the 2014 CIP which is more than the extra 
services allowance in the contract; and. 
 


WHEREAS, this change will result in an overall cost of $458,928; and     
     
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate to include an allowance of $20,000 for extra or 
changed work that may be authorized only by express permission or direction by the 
General Manager.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 







Resolution 14-06. Second Amendment to Agreement for Engineering Services with 
Coastland for 2014 CIP  
April 3, 2014          2 
 


 


1.  The Second Amendment to the Agreement for Engineering Services for the 2014 
CIP with Coastland, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment A, is hereby 
approved in the sum of $458,928 with an extra services allowance of $20,000, for a total 
Not to Exceed Amount of $478,928; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 3, 
2014, by the following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle       


 
 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 


 







 
Second Amendment to Sweetwater Springs Water District Professional Services Agreement with 


Coastland 
1 


ATTACHMENT A 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH  


COASTLAND CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC. 
 


AGREEMENT 
 
This Second Amendment is made and entered into this 3rd day of April 2014, by and 
between Sweetwater Springs Water District, 17081 Highway 116, Suite B, P.O. Box 48, 
Guerneville, California, 95446-0048, hereinafter referred to as "District," and Coastland 
Civil Engineering, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "Consultant." 
 


RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District on November 1, 2012 by Resolution 
No. 12-17 authorized execution of an agreement with the Consultant on behalf of 
District in accordance with the District Policy and Procedures and/or other applicable 
law for Consultant to provide certain engineering services for design and construction 
management and inspection of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) construction 
projects for FY 2014 (“Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District on January 8, 2013 by Resolution No. 
13-03 authorized execution of a First Amendment on behalf of District in accordance 
with the District Policy and Procedures and/or other applicable law, to reflect the 
exchange of the timing of the Hidden Valley Road element and the Old Monte Rio Road 
element, and the addition of the Guerneville Lane element to the scope of Services for 
the work to be done by Consultant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District on April 3, 2013 by Resolution No. 14-
06 authorized execution of this Second Amendment on behalf of District in accordance 
with the District Policy and Procedures and/or other applicable law, to reflect extra 
services that are resulting in extra costs for the Services for the work to be done by 
Consultant. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, District and Consultant, for the consideration hereinafter 
described, mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. PAYMENT TERMS AND NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT 
 
The Not to Exceed Amount in the Agreement shall be increased from $441,526.00 to 
$478,928.00. 
 
2. ENTIRE AMENDMENT 
 







 
Second Amendment to Sweetwater Springs Water District Professional Services Agreement with 


Coastland 
2 


Except as amended in this Second Amendment, the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  
 
3. COUNTERPARTS 
 
This Second Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall 
be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have caused their authorized representative to 
execute this Agreement on this 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 DISTRICT       CONSULTANT 
 
By: ___________________________   By: ___________________ 
 
Its: _General Manager__     Its: Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
        By: ___________________ 
ATTEST:        
 
By: ________________________________  Its: Chief Financial Officer 
 Julie Kenny, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
  David Warner, District General Counsel 
 
 
 
 





		Item V-C - Authorization to Increase Coastland Contract Amount for CIP 2014

		Meeting Date: April 3, 2014 



		Item V-C.1 - CoastlandContractAmendmentRequest

		Item V-C.2 - RES 14-06 2nd Amdmt for Engineering Services for CIP 2014

		Item V-C.3 - Att A 2nd Amended Coastland Agmt for Engineering Services for CIP 2014-5

		PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

		COASTLAND CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC.

		AGREEMENT

		This Second Amendment is made and entered into this 3rd day of April 2014, by and between Sweetwater Springs Water District, 17081 Highway 116, Suite B, P.O. Box 48, Guerneville, California, 95446-0048, hereinafter referred to as "District," and Coastland Civil Engineering, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "Consultant."





		RECITALS

		1. PAYMENT TERMS AND NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT

		Its: _General Manager__     Its: Chief Executive Officer
















SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 3, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  WAIVING THE CAPACITY CHARGE FOR 18072 HWY 116, APN 072-
220-027 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Consider waiving the capacity charge and connection 
fees for the parcel at 18072 Hwy 116, APN 072-220-027.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Trading the fees for the capacity charge and connection fee in 
return for forgoing similar construction costs for the 2015 CIP. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In the course of investigations for the design of the 2015 CIP, District staff 
discovered that the structures at what was formerly called George’s Hideaway and is 
now called the Montesano Station, are on separate parcels even though these 
structures have been served by one meter for as long as they have been metered 
and connected to a public water supply (as far as anyone knows).  District Policy 
3020.142 requires new connections to the District to pay a capacity charge unless 
waived by the Board of Directors and Policy 2010.70 requires that living units and 
commercial enterprises on separate parcels shall have separate meters.   
 
The new owners were informed of the situation in January: that the second structure 
needed a separate meter and would be assessed the capacity charge ($5279.20) and 
a connection fee of approximately $1800 to be determined when the 2015 CIP 
contract was awarded and due at some time after construction starts.   
 
As part of the 2015 CIP, the District is proposing to move the meters for these two 
structures from the current location of the one meter which is well behind the 
restaurant at the base of the hill to in front of both structures near Hwy 116.  This 
will allow the project to not have to negotiate a tortuous path down the hill to the 
present meter location and put the meters in better locations for meter reading 
purposes.  With the CIP projects, when the District relocates the meters as part of 
the projects, the District pays for all necessary plumbing costs, including service lines 
from the meter to the structure and abandoning the existing service lines to the 
structures.  The costs of relocating these meters for this situation will be substantial.  
We haven’t had a contractor’s proposal but the District Field Manager, Kevin Gilman, 
has estimated between $6,000 and $8,000 based on pacing off the distances 
involved.   
 
The cost of the capacity charge and connection fees came as a surprise to the owners 
of the Montesano Station parcels (Tom and Sveta Lynch, Chuck Burger, and Kim 







Consideration of Capacity Charge Waiver   2 
April 3, 2014 
 


 


Menary).  They asked for some consideration for waiving the charges or giving them 
some time to pay off the charges.  They suggested that they could do some of the 
work, thereby reducing the upfront costs to them.   
 
After the investigation of the costs to the District for completing the CIP 2015 
changes, the District Field Manager and I have come to the conclusion that it would 
be in the District’s financial interest to waive the capacity charges and connection 
fees in return for the owners of the two parcels to take responsibility of connecting 
the structures to the new meters, which they are willing to do.  They can do the work 
less expensively than a contractor would charge the District as part of the CIP project 
and the District will save on project costs probably in excess of the capacity charge 
and connection fees.   
 
Staff recommends that the General Manager be authorized to negotiate and sign an 
agreement which waives the capacity charge and connection fees for 18072 Hwy 116 
in return for the owners taking responsibility for all costs of connecting the two new 
meters to both structures. 
 





		Meeting Date: April 3, 2014 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February was 13,772 units (31.6 AF, Monte 


Rio cycle) and production was 45.9 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were lower (31.9 AF and 54.0 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage improved in 
the Guerneville system and has been flat in the Monte Rio system as shown in Figure 1.   


 
3. Leaks:  In February we had 11 total leaks and spent 91 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and compared to February one 
year ago (8 leaks, 31 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with 
a total breaks line as well.   


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall (Drought): March is ending wet, but the month, as a whole, has 


been dry.  We are now on a track similar to 2009 which was also a dry year.  The drought 
in this area will remain a major news subject until Lake Mendocino shows more 
improvement (47% full as of March 24).   We intend to participate in any regional drought 
response – information provided by the Sonoma County Water Agency is on our website or 
provided by links on the website to the information.   The drought has been softened a bit 
for this area but it’s still a serious situation.  The rainy season is typically over in March – 
this may be it for the year (although the current forecast shows the possibility of rain into 
April).         


 
5. 2014 CIP/2015 CIP:   The 2014 CIP is mostly completed except for the finishing touches 


on the road paving – mostly done until the recent rains stopped the cleanup work on 
Guerneville Lane.  Design for the 2015 CIP (Old Monte Rio Road) is moving forward.             


 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in March.  The 


current Direct Install Program accounting numbers are as follows: 31 customers have had 
49 direct install toilet installations completed, 3 customers have not acted after being 
notified they are approved for installation and 11 previously approved customers are on a 
wait list.   .                    


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were 14 in-house projects reported for March.  


Staff cleaned valves at 4 tanks (Gonfotti, Harrison, Highland and Redwood, 27.25 hours), 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
April 3, 2014 
 


replaced the bladder tank and NTU line at Highland Treatment Plant (9.5 hours), replaced 
and raised two valve boxes on Rio Nido Road and abandoned a 2 inch valve at the AC Main 
(Old Creek Crossing, 20 hours), cut and removed 2 trees and debris from Gonfotti Tank 
site (36.25 hours), removed 2 inch intertie between Old Monte Rio Road and Guernewood 
Lane (15.25 hours), installed a 2 inch standpipe and revamped flushout on Bohemian Ave. 
(10.5 hours), cut away and hauled off branches and installed 2 inch overflow at Northwood 
Tank (9 hours), replaced meter box and accessories on Breen Court (4.5 hours) and 
replaced 30 feet of sample line for the chlorine analyzer at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant 
(1.25 hours).   


 
8. Tank Cleaning:  In March the District engaged Liquidvision, a firm that specializes in 


cleaning potable water tanks, to clean and repair 4 District tanks – Villa Grande, Monte Rio 
(2), and the Upper Schoolhouse Tank which has a small installation defect (cracking 
concrete).   


 
9. North Coast Regional Board Meeting on Russian River Total Pathogen Maximum 


Daily Load (TMDL):   On Thursday, March 13, Rich Holmer and I attended the Northcoast 
Regional Board Meeting where an update on the Russian River Pathogen TMDL progress 
was reported.  My understanding is that the Regional Board staff is currently 
recommending dual standards – E Coli meeting the recreation standard and absence 
(below reporting value) of human Bacterioides which is a marker for the presence of 
human feces.  Regional Board staff would like to have a public meeting in this area this 
spring.  We agreed to assist, but the County will likely be taking the lead on setting up the 
meeting.   


   
10. Gantt Chart:   April in the Gantt Chart shows that 2014 CIP construction should be 


complete (in November) – mostly done as discussed above - and design of the 2015 CIP – 
that’s nearly completed.  







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
April 3, 2014 
 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Ma
r-
10


Ma
y-
10


Jul-
10


Se
p-
10


No
v-
10


J
an-
11


Ma
r-
11


Ma
y-
11


Jul-
11


Se
p-
11


No
v-
11


J
an-
12


Ma
r-
12


Ma
y-
12


Jul-
12


Se
p-
12


No
v-
12


J
an-
13


Ma
r-
13


Ma
y-
13


Jul-
13


Se
p-
13


No
v-
13


J
an-
14


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


B
re


a
ks


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 5 
April 3, 2014 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
cto


be
r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


2013


Dryest (1977)


2014


-







 
Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 FY 15+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2013-14 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


2014-15 Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP
        2014 CIP Design
        2014 CIP Award of Contract
        2014 CIP Construction Starts
        2015 CIP Design
        2015 CIP Award of Contract
        2015 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-14
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: April 3, 2014 



